
South Shore Bikes on Trains Study  
Question & Answers 
 
1) Who will be evaluating the submitted proposals? 

The proposals will be reviewed the six person Bikes on Trains Study Advisory Committee. 
The Committee will be composed of: 
 John Parsons (Marketing & Public Outreach Director - NICTD)  
 Nicole Barker (Executive Director - Save the Dunes)  
 Geof Benson (Town Council President – Beverly Shores; NIRPC Commissioner)  
 Jan Dick (City Councilman –Valparaiso; Chairman – NIRPC’s Ped, Pedal & Paddle 

Committee) 
 Dave Shafer (Clerk-Treasurer – Munster) 
 LeAaron Foley (Midwest Senior Outreach Coordinator – National Parks 

Conservation Assoc.) 
NIRPC staff will administer project support to the advisory committee, but will not serve as 
a voting member. 
 

2) What is the time length of the project? 
The Advisory Committee does not have a hard-set time length in mind, but rather is 
interested in reviewing each proposer’s calendar and work plan, and deciphering whether 
their projected timeframe for creating a finished product appears to be clear and responsible. 
The Advisory Committee would not like for the project to take longer than a year, and has 
the expectation based on experience of the committee members that it will likely take 9 
months, but that expectation is secondary to what is in the proposer’s work plan and 
calendar. 
 

3) Have any public opinion studies been conducted regarding carrying bikes on the 
Northern Indiana Commuter Transportation District (NICTD) trains? 
NICTD has recently conducted a passenger ridership survey, which indicated that 60% of 
their riders responded positively to carrying bikes on trains.   

 
4) Please explain the scoring criteria in greater detail. 

Each committee member will score each proposal against the evaluation criteria (illustrated 
on page 1.4-1.5 of the RFP). After each committee member has scored each proposal, the 
scores of the committee members will be collected, and an overall mean average score will 
be determined for each proposal. If follow-up interviews are determined to be necessary by 
the Bikes on Trains Study Advisory Committee the top scoring proposals (which can be of 
any number) will be brought in. 

 
5) What resources will be made available to the consultant during the proposal 

application process? 
There are a number of publicly-available resources (mentioned on page 1.15 of the RFP) for 
how other agencies have initiated bikes on trains programs, all of which can be used by 



different proposers. Internal documents belonging to NICTD will not be made available 
during the period of competitive procurement, but will certainly be a primary resource to the 
candidate that has been selected, once the contract is awarded, and the project has begun. 
 

6) Has NICTD explored a Bikes on Trains program independently? 
NICTD has done internal cost estimates for implementing a Bikes on Trains program, and 
have conducted on-site demonstrations exploring the challenges of instituting such a program 
under the existing conditions, but the agency has not pursued this program as actively as their 
other priority initiatives, up to this point. 
 

7) Under Task 3 (p. 1.12), the practice of cutting and adding of NICTD trains is 
mentioned? Please explain. 
Operating as a heritage interurban rail line, NICTD cuts and adds train cars in its rail yards in 
Michigan City and Gary, between Chicago and South Bend. This creates operational 
considerations that need to be factored in when planning for a Bikes on Trains program. If, 
for instance, the proposed alternative involved specifically designating certain cars for 
carrying bikes, that would require an extra level of coordination when cutting and adding 
cars to trains in their rail yards.  
 

8) Will there be a public involvement component to the consultant’s work? 
Yes. Once selected, the consultant will negotiate the amount of public input sessions that will 
be initiated for this project, with the project advisory committee. However many in number, 
this will stand as additional to presentations made to the appropriate NIRPC policy 
committees and NICTD’s executive board. 
 

9) Is NICTD self-insured? 
No. 
 

10) Throughout the project, will NIRPC’s resources be made available to the selected 
consultant? 
Yes, they will be. 
 

11) Is a Bid sheet required as part of the submittal? 
Although a bid sheet is not required under the instructions for submittal section 3.6 on page 
1:7 does cover pricing. The proposals may detail their pricing however they feel will best 
meet the requirements of this section. There is no required pricing format required, however 
it is recommended that the proposals identify costs associated by item as opposed to 
submitting one lump sum price. 

 
12) Are their page limits for the proposal? 

No. 

13) What is the calendar for reviewing proposals and awarding the contract? 
The deadline for receiving proposals is Friday, June 27 (12pm CT). After this point, the 



advisory committee will review the proposals over the following 2-3 weeks, and then meet to 
score the proposals. If interviews are deemed to be necessary, they will be held proceeding 
the initial project scoring meeting, in mid to late July. Once the top proposal has been 
selected, the contract will be brought in front of NIRPC’s Full Commission meeting for 
approval. The desired NIRPC meeting for contract approval is Thursday, August 21. Once 
the contract is awarded, an initial meeting will be scheduled between the selected consultant 
and the advisory committee to discuss next steps. 
 

14) Does the advisory committee anticipate it will be conducting interviews? 
Interviews will be at the discretion of the Bikes on Trains Study Advisory Committee and are 
anticipated to take place in mid to late July. 
 

15) Will this study involve an assessment of NICTD’s scheduling? 
Yes. NICTD’s scheduling and headway frequency are likely to be effected by including bikes 
on trains, and so an assessment of NICTD’s scheduling will serve as an important facet of 
this study. 
 

16) One of the deliverables is quarterly progress reports, will there be any other reporting 
required more frequently? 
The formal reporting for this project is required quarterly. The project advisory committee 
would like more informal reports or updates to occur on a monthly basis. 

 
17) How is this study being funded? 

This project is primarily funded through a Federal Transit Administration (FTA) grant of 
which the total federal funding available for the project is $164,000. The grant will be made 
available by FTA at some point between July-September 2014. 
 

18) Is there a grant available for review that contains this study? 
The grant has been submitted to the Federal Transportation Administration for review but has 
not yet been approved so at this time there is no grant language available to view. The federal 
grant is submitted with NIRPC’s Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) as an attachment. 
The UPWP explains the project in more depth than the grant application will. The Bikes on 
Trains project can be found in NIRPC’s Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) as well 
as the UPWP. Both of these documents are available to view on NIRPC’s website. 
 
TIP (p 8 of the document): http://www.nirpc.org/media/40179/transit_tip_may_2014.pdf  
UPWP (p. 133 of the document): http://nirpc.org/media/39740/final_report_upwp_15_16.pdf  
 
If you are having trouble downloading the above documents you may e-mail 
kwenger@nirpc.org and request a copy to be sent to you via e-mail. 
 

19) Are there instances in the request for proposals (RFP) where metric 6 & 7 of the 
evaluation criteria are more explicitly explained? What constitutes as an “effective and 

http://www.nirpc.org/media/40179/transit_tip_may_2014.pdf
http://nirpc.org/media/39740/final_report_upwp_15_16.pdf
mailto:kwenger@nirpc.org


compelling preview of prospective deliverables for Tasks 1-6,” or a “clear and 
responsible project work plan and calendar?” 
These are not explicitly defined in the RFP, however, Tasks 1-6 in the Scope of Work are 
quite detailed in description, and should serve as very clear guidance for the consultant’s 
effort to effectively deliver upon those explicitly requested items. Whether the consultant’s 
work plan and calendar is “clear and responsible” is up to the discretion of the project 
advisory committee, upon reviewing their proposal. 
 

20) Do the Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) need to be Indiana certified DBE’s 
or can they be certified in any state? 
The DBE’s need to be certified in the state of Indiana. 
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Consultants 
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Engineering 
(219) 844-7030 rjhebel@supereng.com 
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Greg Adelberg TY Lin 

International 
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